
New Milford Board of Education 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 

January 17, 18, 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

Budget Hearing Minutes 

January 17, 2024 bt 

23 & 24, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

Present: Mrs. Wendy Faulenbach, Chairperson 

Mr. Eric Hansell 
Mr. Brian McCauley 

Mrs. Tammy McInerney 
Mr. Tom O’Brien 
Mr. Dean Barile 

Mayor Pete Bass, Ex officio 

Absent: Mrs. Sarich and Mrs. Rella 

Also Present: Dr. Janet Parlato, Superintendent of Schools 

Mr. Jeffrey Turner, Technology Director 

Ms. Holly Hollander, Assistant Superintendent of Schools 
Mr. Anthony Giovannone, Director of Fiscal Services and Operations 

Mrs. Anne Bilko, Sarah Noble Intermediate School Principal 

Mrs. Gwen Gallagher, Northville Elementary School Principal 
Mrs. Catherine Calabrese, Hill and Plain Elementary School Principal 

Call to Order 

Pledge of Allegiance 

The budget hearing meeting of the New Milford 
Board of Education was called to order at 7:00pm. 

by Mrs. Faulenbach, Chairperson. The Pledge of 

Allegiance immediately followed the call to order. 

Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 

Presentation of the Superintendent’s Proposed 

2024-2025 Budget 

Mrs. Faulenbach stated there is an outline on 
budget proceedings available, noting that there is 

an opportunity for the public to be heard at the end 
of tonight's meeting. The following two evenings 

the public will have a chance to speak at the 

beginning and end of the meetings. On the last 

night, the public will be allowed to speak at the 
beginning of the meeting. 

Dr. Parlato began by presenting the proposed 

24-25 budget. The presentation discussed the 

following: 

Presentation of the 

Superintendent’s Proposed 

2024-2025 School Budget 



New Milford Board of Education Page 2 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 
January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

e Overview of the budget; 
e Fixed costs and how they impact the 

proposed budget; 

e Items that are controllable and fixed; 

® Use these as a springboard for questions 
and discussion; 

e Create connections for district priorities 

and proposed items. 

Dr. Parlato discussed the mission statement, and 

stated the new additions are the ideas the district 

lives by: Focus, Collaboration, Heart, and 

Creativity. Dr. Parlato gave the budget 
development timeline and stated it began in 

October, leading up to January. It is a collaborative 

effort, based on the needs of each school and the 

departments. The goals include working towards 

PreK-12 students academic targets, relationship 
strengthening, and creating a welcoming school 
climate. 

Dr. Parlato explained that budget priorities 

include: 
® Student support; 
® High quality teaching and learning, by 

using strategies and new programs to maximize 
student learning; 

® Future-focused programming to build 

opportunities for careers and real world 
experiences. 

Dr. Parlato went on to review the fixed costs: 

® Contractual salaries for all bargaining 

units; 

) Contractual benefits for all bargaining 

units; 

@ Bus contract; 

® Utilities; 

e Insurance; 

e Agriscience seats (3 more than last year). 

Dr. Parlato stated this is an increase of $2,157,470 

or 3.05%. 

Dr. Parlato discussed the ESSER cliff and 

explained ESSER III funds are expiring 

September 30, 2024. All funds must be expended 



New Milford Board of Education Page 3 
Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 
January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

by that date. New Milford received $2,588,252. A 
portion was spent on 13.5 certified positions. The 

positions were created to address needs that came 
from the pandemic: learning loss, incomplete 

learning, mental health challenges, etc., but those 
needs will continue after September. Dr. Parlato 

requested to move 7.5 of the 13.5 positions to the 

district budget. This includes 2 English Language 
Learner (ELL) positions, | Pathways Coordinator, 

2 Grades K-8 Curriculum Specialists (Math and 
Reading/Language Arts), | nurse, 0.5 In-School 

Suspension Monitor, 0.5 Preschool Teacher, and 
0.5 School Counselor. It is a total of $641,130 for 

salary and benefits. 

Dr. Parlato continued, stating there are additional 

requests to increase the School Security Officer 
pay from $25/hour to $30/hour. Also, increase the 
budget for Athletics and Field Trip Transportation. 
With the bus system not being reliable for club and 

activity transport, the district has needed to go to 
more costly, outside vendors. Dr. Parlato proposed 

the district add Certified Nursing Assistant and 
Emergency Medical Technician Programs. This all 

connects to Pathways at the high school. Dr. 
Parlato also requested an increase to out-of-district 

placement tuition, non-bargaining unit employee 

salaries and benefits, and other miscellaneous 
items such as legal, etc. 

Dr. Parlato stated the overall proposed budget 
amount is $73,883,539. 

Dr. Parlato went over the positions that would not 

be carried over once the ESSER funding expires in 

September 2024 and other proposed reductions of 

currently held positions not ESSER-funded. It is a 
reduction of $561,494. 

Dr Parlato summarized the process is honest, 
transparent, and thoughtful. There are specific 

conversations about the budget. Important student 

needs are persisting and increasing. 

Dr. Parlato concluded by thanking her cabinet and 

administrators for putting forth fair and thoughtful 

ideas. 



New Milford Board of Education 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 
January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

Page 4 

Mrs. Faulenbach opened it up to questions. 

Mr. McCauley asked if there are still math and 
reading coaches in the elementary schools. Ms. 

Hollander stated there are 4.0 at the K-5 level and 

1.0 at 6-8 level. Mrs. Herring asked if the 
Pathways Coordinator is paid as a teacher and if 
they are working with students. Dr. Parlato stated 

yes, it is a school counselor position for career 
readiness. Mrs. Herring asked about the additional 
nurse for the transition program at The Maxx. Dr. 

Parlato stated if the student needs care urgently, 

yes. Mrs. Herring then asked about the 0.5 school 
counselor and where they would be. Dr. Parlato 

stated they will be at Sarah Noble. The district 

already pays half of it, and the ESSER grant pays 
the other half so that half will move to the school 
budget. 

Mr. O’Brien asked how many positions would be 
left with the reduction of 2 placeholders from the 

out placement tuition line. Mrs. Olson stated 5. 
Mr. O’Brien stated it is a risky move. Dr. Parlato 

agreed it is a risk but there are placeholders that 

still exist in the budget. Mrs. Faulenbach added it 
is a reduction from this year's budget. Ms. 

McInerney pointed out that the funds would have 

to come from somewhere in the operations budget 
if the outplacement line is exhausted and 

additional students require outplacement. 

Mr. Barile asked if there is a number for the 
students that pay tuition to attend New Milford 
Public Schools. Dr. Parlato stated yes and it will 
be reviewed by Mr. Giovannone. 

Mr. Hansell asked regarding the reduction of 

tutors, and if they were being fully utilized. Dr. 
Parlato stated the district had a hard time finding 

teachers to take the tutor positions. Mr. Hansell 

asked to clarify that it is not an educational loss. 

Dr. Parlato stated it is always a loss when 

positions are unfilled. Mr. Hansell stated the 

school based health clinics were using ESSER 
funds. Dr. Parlato stated the mental health 

component of that is covered by CIFC, the money 



New Milford Board of Education 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 

January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

Page 5 

from ESSER was for the construction of that 
medical piece and that money was not used. Mr. 
Hansell wanted to clarify that there would not be 

any public funds going towards that project. Dr. 

Parlato stated the only way funds would go 
towards it is if the district is billed for a secretary 

to help with the clerical piece of billing insurance. 

That would be what the district would cover. 

Mr. Hansell stated he wanted to make sure it 

doesn’t become a taxpayer funded medical clinic. 
Dr. Parlato stated they have no plans for that. 

Mr. Hansell then asked about the ELL, increasing 

by 2 employees. Mr. Hansell asked, of the kids 

that come in, how long do they stay, and do they 
have the support to eventually transition out. It is a 

concern, if they don’t need to be in there anymore, 
they should be transitioned. Dr. Parlato said they 

take assessments every year to see who can be 

moved out. 

Mrs. Herring stated she is concerned about losing 

4 reading and math interventionists and tutors. 

Mrs. Herring stated she thinks funds should go 
towards direct work with the students. Dr. Parlato 
stated the Coaches will begin to take on 

interventionists roles in their duties. 

Mrs. Herring asked what books are being used in 
math for grades 7-8. Ms. Hollander stated they are 

making sure students are ready for 9th grade in 8th 
grade. Currently there is a disconnect, so it’s being 

realigned and that is happening in 6th grade right 

now. Mrs. Herring asked if they’re creating the 

lessons. Ms. Hollander stated they are trying to 
figure that out - if the district wants to purchase or 

create its own. Dr. Parlato added, circling back to 

Mrs. Herring's original question, that it is not 
eliminating interventionists totally, there are still 

interventionists in the General Fund. 

3. Discussion of the Superintendent's Proposed 

2024-2025 Budget including but not limited to, 

PK - Grade 5, Transportation, Benefits, 
Revenue, District-Wide Departments 

Discussion of the 

Superintendent's Proposed 

2024-2025 Budget including but 

not limited to, PK - Grade 5, 

Transportation, Benefits, 



New Milford Board of Education 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 
January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

Page 6 

Dr. Parlato began by stating this is a great way to 
showcase the work of the schools. 

Mrs. Calabrese, Mrs. Gallagher and Mrs. Bilko 

gave a collaborative presentation. 

Mrs. Calabrese stated that at HPS, there are 35.95 

staff members and HPS is projected to have 396 

students next year. She then broke it down by 

grade for students and teachers. 

Mrs. Gallagher stated there are 40.85 staff 

members at NES. It is projected to have 434 
students next year. She stated the numbers are on 

par with the current school year. 

Mrs. Bilko stated SNIS is projected to have 747 
students next year and 4th grade has a slightly 

lower enrollment than the 3rd and Sth grades. Mrs. 
Bilko stated there are roughly 1,500 students 

between the schools and displayed some of the 
work that’s been happening in the schools. 

Mrs. Gallagher discussed the Heggerty, UFLI and 

Science of Reading programs stating they focus on 
the five pillars of reading and strong Tier 1 

instruction. It's in support of the students. Coaches 
are in the classrooms modeling and working with 

the teachers. Dr. Parlato added that if students are 

not reading at grade level by 3rd grade it is very 
difficult to catch up. 

Mrs. Gallager, Mrs. Calabrese and Mrs. Bilko 

showed the iReady fall vs. winter scores and 

showed that there was improvement across the 

three schools. Their efforts are making an impact. 
Mrs. Gallagher noted it is a diagnostic tool and the 

district can dive down deep and see where a 
student may be struggling. 

Mrs. Bilko stated iReady is a heavy lift. It is all 
new, and the transition has been a group effort. It 

was important to make sure teachers are prepared 
so they can teach to the kids. It’s lots of 

mathematical language so students can talk 

through the math problems. 

Revenue, District-Wide 

Departments 



New Milford Board of Education 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 
January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

Page 7 

Mrs. Gallagher stated they have academic 
Interventions. Interventionists work with the tier 2 

students a few times a week. Tier 3 students are 

seen each day. 

Mrs. Bilko stated there are related services through 

counselors and social workers, to help students 
with social emotional needs. This helps them 

manage emotions and frustrations so they can 
regulate and be ready to learn. 

Mrs. Calabrese showed the budget for the three 

schools and the percentage of what they are in the 
overall budget. 

Mrs. Gallagher stated the budget ensures to 
continue to help support students. Mrs. Bilko 

added that it is centered on the whole child 
learning and growing. 

Mrs. Faulenbach thanked Mrs. Gallagher, Mrs. 

Calabrese, and Mrs. Bilko and asked if there were 

any questions. 

Mrs. McInerney asked about the NES budget 
overview. NES breakdown of class sizes for PreK 

vs. HPS, and that there is a large difference. Mrs. 
Gallagher stated it is most likely a typo. 

Mr. Barile asked how the iReady compares to state 

standardized tests. Mrs. Bilko stated iReady helps 

gauge how students are doing throughout the 
school year. It’s a snapshot in time, and given the 

scores they feel strongly that students will perform 

better on the standardized tests. Dr. Parlato stated 

it is one of the reasons the district selected iReady. 

Dr. Parlato thanked the PreK-5 team and 

acknowledged the assistant principals. 

Mr. Hansell asked when SBAC’s are taken. Mrs. 

Bilko stated it is in April and results are released 
over the summer. 

Mrs. Faulenbach stated there will be a workshop 

on where the district is with test scores in 

February. 



New Milford Board of Education 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 
January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

Page 8 

Mrs. Faulenbach asked what the amount is to 

move the 0.5 HPS from ESSER to the General 

Fund. Mr. Giovannone stated $36,000 all in. 

Mrs. Faulenbach began reviewing the budgets for 

the K-5 schools. 

Mr. Hansell asked for clarification on the 0.5 FTE 

on page 12. Mr. Giovannone stated it is going up 
15.9%. If not for the addition of the 0.5 FTE, it 

would only go up approximately 3%. 

Mr. McCauley asked about the Special Education 
break out. Mr. Giovannone stated Special 

Education and Pupil Personnel is the same as it 
has been. 

Mrs. Faulenbach asked if there were any questions 

about the NES budget. There were none. 

Mrs. Faulenbach moved on to SNIS. 

Mr. Hansell asked on page 23, the addition from 
ESSER is the ELL teacher. Mr. Giovannone stated 

yes, it is absorbing one of the ELL teachers. Dr. 

Parlato stated one is SNIS and one is SMS. Mr. 
Hansell asked about the counselor. Mrs. 

Faulenbach and Dr. Parlato stated 0.5 is being 
taken from ESSER and being added to the General 

Fund, 0.5 was already in the General Fund. 

Mr. Hansell asked about the school counselors. Dr. 

Parlato stated there is increased anxiety in 

students, there is a mental health need for it. She 

hopes it dissipates, but doesn’t think it is just from 
Covid. Mr. Hansell clarified stating, so there was 
already a need before Covid. Mr. McCauley stated 

there has always been a need for more counselors. 

Mr. Barile added that the specialists, once the 

teachers are up to speed, may not be needed as 
much. 

Mrs. Faulenbach stated the appendices are very 

helpful, and to readdress Mr. Hansell’s question, it 
would be helpful to see what we have for support 
in the district. As enrollment has declined, some of 



New Milford Board of Education 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 
January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

Page 9 

the needs in these areas have actually increased. 

Concerns are brought up every year by the 
community and staff regarding support services in 

mental health. 

Mrs. Herring asked about the positions being 

removed, and asked if these people lose their jobs 
or get absorbed somewhere else. Dr. Parlato stated 

some may be absorbed depending on retirements 
and if some of them are more senior, they will 
have bumping rights. 

Mrs. McInerney thanked them for presenting. 

Transportation: 

Mr. Giovannone presented the Department of 
General Administration. He stated there is an 

increase of 5.88% regarding stipends, 
salary/non-cert transportation and pupil 

transportation. 

Mrs. Faulenbach, asked about pupil transportation. 
Mr. Giovannone stated it is for normal general 

education transportation. Mrs. Faulenbach asked 

what the size of the fleet is. Mr. Giovannone stated 
there are 47 drivers and the district is in year two 

of its five year contract. 

Mr. Hansell asked about tracking and swiping of 

student IDs, and stated that the cost is a concern. 

Dr. Parlato stated the swiping is not in her budget. 

Mr. Hansell stated there is a need for being able to 

track the bus, but is worried it will be a 

disappointment and essentially be diminishing 
returns because it will be more frustration than a 

benefit. Dr. Parlato stated the sample app the bus 

company provided was not good. She agreed it can 
be helpful but needs to be high quality. Mr. 

O’Brien asked what swiping is. Dr. Parlato stated 

it’s when the students swipe as they get on or off 
the bus. 

Mrs. McInerney asked Dr. Parlato if the app the 
bus company has shown has met her satisfaction. 

Dr. Parlato stated no. Mrs. McInerney asked to 

confirm the district won’t be funding it. Dr. Parlato 



New Milford Board of Education Page 10 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 
January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

stated that was correct, the district won’t spend it 

unless it is worth the dollars. 

Mrs. Faulenbach asked to clarify the 0.5 Courier 
position, if the cost is neutral. Mr. Giovannone 

stated yes, Mrs. Faulenbach noted it will be a zero 

increase to the overall budget. Mr. Giovannone 
confirmed yes. 

Mr. Giovannone continued by going over the 
benefits and stated some line items are provided 

by the state, some are provided by The Hartford 
and some by CIRMA, which does workers 

compensation. Mrs. Herring asked about the 
increase in pension and what is attributed to it. Dr. 

Parlato stated that is the town pension for 
non-certified staff. Mayor Bass stated in the year 
prior, the amount of return was much less than 

forecast, so this is to make up for that loss of 

return. Mr. Giovannone stated it is not based on 
participation change but investment change. 

Mr. Giovannone stated regarding health insurance, 
he anticipates an increase of 7%. Mrs. Faulenbach 

stated the Town and the Board have spent a lot of 

time reviewing this, and it’s truly collaborative. 
Mrs. Faulenbach asked what the public trend is. 

Dr. Parlato stated she will provide that. Mrs. 
Faulenbach stated she would like to have that 

number as a comparison. The SPP grew because 

benefits are a huge topic. Mr. Giovannone stated 
there are conversations with Brown & Brown on 

whether it’s worth staying on SPP. 

Mr. Giovannone stated, regarding revenue, that 

excess cost is for outplacement for students 

including transportation. Mr. O’Brien asked when 
the district will get the actual number. Mr. 

Giovannon stated it is a long process. Mr. O’Brien 

asked to confirm it will not be until May that we 
will know that number. Mr. Giovannone stated 

yes. It is a projection from the state that could 

change. 

Mr. Giovannone stated, going though the budget, 

Medicaid has been changed based on actuals. The 

FOI fees are a legacy item, set to zero. Building 



New Milford Board of Education 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 

January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

Page 11 

use fees are changing slightly. The EXCEL tuition, 
Special Education tuition and DCF placed tuition 

are remaining flat. Admissions/athletic gate 
receipts and parking permit fees are flat. 

Mrs. McInerney asked about the reduction in 
athletic gate receipts and if it’s because students 

now get in for free. Mrs. Faulenbach stated yes. 
Mr. Giovannone confirmed that over the last 3 

years parking fees went from $215 to $100. Mrs. 
McInerney noted that both those line items 

changed because people came to the BOE and 
spoke about it. 

Mr. Barile asked about the $801,000 out of district 

costs budgeted and asked if New Milford was not 
bringing in as many students as it is paying to send 

out of district. He asked how we ensure students 

are residents. Dr. Parlato stated she will show him 
our residency procedures. Mrs. McInerney noted 
that the money for Sherman students goes to the 

town and that amount is not reflected in the district 

budget. 

Mr. Giovannone continued by going through the 
Department of Fiscal Services & Operations. It is 

an increase of 7.32% and includes staffing. Mr. 
Giovannone noted the L.A.P. and Cyber Insurance 

is going up 9.88%. 

Mr. Giovannone then stated the BOE salary line 

item originally created was too high and the 
professional services line included an amount for 

police presence for board meetings and hearings 

that are not needed. 

Mr. Giovannone stated in the slide of the Office of 

the Superintendent, salary lines are per contract. 

Dues and fees lines went up because it was not 

enough to carry the line item going forward. 

Mr. Hansell asked who Board members should 

send additional questions to as they come up. Mrs. 

Faulenbach stated to send them to Dr. Parlato and 

herself. Depending on the nature of the question, 
Mrs. Faulenbach asked to allow for some time, but 



New Milford Board of Education Page 12 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 
January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

they will make sure questions are answered by 

next Wednesday. 

4. Opportunity for the Public to be heard Opportunity for the Public to be 
heard 

Megan Byrd, 2 Carlson Rd., stated in Dr. Parlato’s 

presentation there were two sections she wanted to 
address. For the ESSER funds, the ELL increase 

was cited as the reason to keep the ELL funds in 
there. Mrs. Byrd asked, isn’t ELL mandated. 

There is a certain number of staff per population. 
Shouldn’t that be considered a mandated amount 

as well and should be part of the non-negotiable. 
This is the same for the nurse who is specific to 

the special needs population, which is also 
mandated. They should be noted that they are 

mandated by the State so, if cuts are made, it 

cannot apply to those items. 

There still is a huge need for counseling, and she 

is not sure why they are considering cutting those 
positions. Ms. Byrd stated it stood out to her. 

5. Recessed to Thursday, January 18, 2023 Recessed to Thursday, January 
18, 2023 

The budget hearing meeting of the New Milford 
Board of Education was called to recess at 9:06 The meeting recessed at 9:06 

p.m. by Mrs. Faulenbach, Chairperson. p.m. 



New Milford Board of Education Page 13 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 
January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

Budget Hearing Minutes 

January 18, 2024 
Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

Present: Mrs. Wendy Faulenbach, Chairperson 

Mr. Eric Hansell 

Mr. Brian McCauley 
Mrs. Tammy McInerney 
Mr. Tom O’Brien 

Mrs. Olga I. Rella 

Mrs. Leslie Sarich 
Mrs. Sarah Herring 
Mr. Dean Barile 

Also Present: | Dr. Janet Parlato, Superintendent of Schools 
Ms. Holly Hollander, Assistant Superintendent of Schools 

Mr. Anthony Giovannone, Director of Fiscal Services and Operations 
Mrs. Laura Olson, Director of Pupil Personnel and Special Services 

Mr. Matthew Cunningham, Facilities Director 
Mr. Jeffrey Turner, Technology Director 
Mr. Raymond Manka, New Milford High School Principal 

Mr. Keith Lipinsky, New Milford High School Athletic Director 
Ms. Linda Scoralick, Schaghticoke Middle School Principal 

1. Call to Order Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance Pledge of Allegiance 

The budget hearing meeting of the New Milford Board 

of Education resumed at 7:00pm by Mrs. Faulenbach, 
Chairperson. The Pledge of Allegiance immediately 

followed the call to order to resume the meeting. 

2. Opportunity for the Public to be heard Opportunity for the Public to be 

e None heard 

e None 

3. Discussion of the Superintendent’s Proposed Discussion of the Superintendent’s 
2023-2024 Budget including, but not limited to, Proposed 2023-2024 Budget 

Grades 6-12 and District-Wide Departments including, but not limited to, 
Grades 6-12 and District-Wide 

Middle School: Departments 

Mrs. Faulenbach stated the presentation will begin 
with Ms. Scoralick and SMS. Ms. Scoralick began by 

stating middle school years are important to provide 

the foundation for high school, college, and career. It is 

to help students embrace challenges, respect others, 



New Milford Board of Education Page 14 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 
January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 
Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

learn to contribute to society, and take on larger 
responsibilities. 

Ms. Scoralick stated the demographic is shifting. 

There are more MLL (Multi Language Learner) 
students and more SE (Special Education) students. 

There is also an increase in the students qualifying for 

free or reduced meals. There is an increased level of 
financial need for families as well as a need for help 
with social skills/behaviors. There are currently 776 

students, 917 members of the SMS community and 
140 staff. 

Ms. Scoralick stated there has been a major focus on 

improving climate and culture. Staff has been doing 

this by setting up clear expectations, fostering student 
and teacher leadership, improving the physical plant, 
and integrating fun with spirit days, such as pep rallies 

and non-academic activities. 

The school has been working hard on improving 
academics. They are going back to basics, working on 

engagement and motivation for students. Another area 
of focus is Humanities: addressing gaps in 

communication and improving reading, writing, 

making arguments, etc. ELA has been focusing on 
vocabulary and vertical alignment for writing. For the 

MLL students, the focus has been to improve overall 
support, not through ESL classes but a push-in format 

with structured study. Ms. Scoralick stated the school 
is also completing an inventory to identify areas for 

growth. In math, they are working on unpacking data 
use, and building a model classroom with the 6th grade 

classroom. They are working on building general 

capacity with head teachers, working with EdAdvance. 

There has been lots of work with STEM, and a push to 
create additional courses that are more hands-on and 

relevant. 

The budget priorities include maintaining current 

programing in academics, athletics, and clubs and 

activities. Costs have gone up drastically and there is a 

need for more supplies to support Unified Arts. There 

has also been increases to transportation costs with 
having to utilize coach buses. 



New Milford Board of Education Page 15 
Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 
January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

Ms. Scoralick stated she is hoping for funds to 

improve course offerings specifically for technology 
courses. They are working on a new curriculum for 

STEM, to complement Project Lead the Way. 

Computer Science is currently being rewritten to make 
it more hands-on, with topics that are relevant. The 

school is introducing Digital Media, and is requesting 

funds for robotics and coding to support STEM 
classes. 

Mrs. Scoralick concluded by stating she is requesting 

funds to broaden opportunities outside of the 

classroom and to give students a chance to find their 
voice. Student leaders recently collaborated with the 
School Climate Committee. There is a hope to give 

student leaders more opportunities so students can 
learn from guest speakers and network. Mrs. Scoralick 

stated she worked hard to bring back assemblies, but 
this requires funding to bring in guest speakers. She 

concluded by thanking everyone for the continued 
support. 

Mrs. Faulenbach opened it up for questions. 

Mr. O'Brien asked where guest speakers are in the 

budget. Ms. Scoralick stated under Professional 
Services. Mrs. Faulenbach asked what is the total 

dollar amount allocated to that, and is it already 
allocated or a new addition. Ms. Scoralick stated they 

found savings from other places to add dollars to that 

line item and estimates about $12,000. 

Mrs. Rella asked if the $12,000 is embedded in 
Professional Services. Ms. Scoralick stated yes. Mrs. 

Faulenbach stated Mr. Giovannone can give an update 
on that and distribute it to the board members. 

Mr. Barile asked what the books are under Improving 

Academics. Ms. Scoralick stated the books are geared 

towards student engagement and motivation. The goal 

is to have them aligned with what the students are 
learning. Mr. Barile clarified by stating the books are 

used to inspire students to want to learn the 

curriculum. Ms. Scoralick stated yes. Mr. O'Brien 

asked if the teachers were reading the books too. Ms. 

Scoralick stated yes. 



New Milford Board of Education Page 16 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 
January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

Ms. Scoralick stated many students are not English 
speaking, so they are documenting where the needs 

are, and are working on growing so they can grow. Mr. 
Barile asked if the school would then use that metric to 

measure themselves against that growth. Ms. Scoralick 
stated yes. 

Mrs. Faulenbach asked about moving things from 

ESSER to the General Fund and asked how the 
In-School Suspension Monitor works. Ms. Scoralick 

stated they monitor students in in-school suspension. 
There is a counseling process that incorporates things 

such as writing an apology letter. It's about education, 
growth, and reflection to prevent behaviors happening 
again. 

Mrs Faulenbach asked how this was handled before 
ESSER funds. Ms. Scoralick stated it was a rotating 

duty of staff. In the previous six-day model, there were 
up to 42 people in that position, making it hard to stay 

consistent with completion. Teachers would do it as a 
duty, so now they are able to be hall monitors and on 

cafeteria duty. Mrs. Faulenbach asked what the dollar 
amount is. Mr. Giovannone stated it is $32,381. 

Mrs. Rella asked if there is a way to get an explanation 
for the $70,000 in Other Services. Mr. Giovannone 

stated he will break out those line items for the next 
meeting. 

Mr. Hansell asked, in regards to the In-School 

Suspension Monitor, do we track student incidents and 
are they falling off since having the position. Ms. 

Scoralick stated yes, it spiked a bit last year with the 

new administration but it’s beginning to trail off. Mr. 

Hansell stated it is important to let the town know the 
value of it and the improvement it’s having. Dr. Parlato 

stated there is state legislation that happened to move 

away from out of school suspensions to in-school 
suspension. 

Mrs. Herring stated there has not been a purchase of 
new programs or textbooks in years. Ms. Scoralick 

stated they are using the resources that the staff already 
has on hand. They are also creating the curriculum. 

Mrs. Ziu-Pires has been spearheading the instructional 

routines, and discussing mathematical thinking. Mrs. 



New Milford Board of Education Page 17 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 
January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

Herring asked to confirm the school is developing it 

itself. Ms. Scoralick stated yes under Mrs. Ziu-Pires’ 
lead. 

Mrs. Faulenbach asked on page 27 of the budget, the 

increase in SMS besides contractual is $80,000 for the 

entire school. Mr. Giovannone stated yes, if you take 
salaries out, the increase is $58,238 dollars. 

Mrs. Sarich asked about computer education, 

compared to last year. Ms. Scoralick stated they are 
writing new courses for that, like the Computer 

Science class. They are asking for robotics kits and 
bridge building kids for the STEM classes. 

Mrs. Rella asked about the transportation expense for 

Field Trips. Ms. Scoralick stated unless the students 
stay in town and do it during school hours, they have 

to reserve a coach bus. Mr. Giovannone stated, of the 

$69,550, $45,900 of that is purely related to 

transportation, $6,500 is insurance, and some for 
ancillary items. Mrs. Faulenbach asked if that is 

separate from what Ms. Scoralick just stated about 
coach buses. Mr. Giovannone stated no, that is part of 

it. Mrs. Faulenbach asked for a list of clubs and 

activities. Dr. Parlato stated she would provide that. 

Mrs. Rella asked about the workbooks for languages. 
Since SMS eliminated a whole grade for language, 

why an increase. Ms. Scoralick stated the budget was 

created in October, and the hope is to be able to fill the 
position, so she budgeted for it. Mrs. Rella confirmed 

that without the teachers there won’t be a need for it. 

Ms. Scoralick agreed. 

Mr. Hansell asked if the extra ELL teacher was coming 
from ESSER and if it would be a second ELL 

instructor. Mr. Giovannone stated that it includes the 

1.0 new FT ELL from ESSER. Mr. Hansell asked if 

ELL instructors have a language in which they 

specialize. Dr. Parlato clarified that ELL does not 
mean the teacher speaks a specific language, a 

bi-lingual teacher does. An ELL teacher is certified to 

teach others how to speak English. 

Mrs. Rella asked if it is for two teachers. Mr. 

Giovannone stated yes. Mrs. McInerney added that 



New Milford Board of Education Page 18 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 
January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

this is the addition of one ELL teacher and a raise for a 

second ELL teacher. Mrs. Faulenbach added it is for 

one position coming from ESSER, being pulled to the 

General Fund and one already in the General Fund. 

Mrs. Rella asked for a synopsis of what the EL 

program entails. Ms. Scoralick stated ESL classes used 
to be a Unified Art. At the beginning of last year, they 
became core classes, so English is essentially their 

World Language class. Ms. Scoralick added that she is 

trying to support students and add in a structured study 
hall. 

Mr. McCauley asked about ELL, and stated they are 
mandatory based on the number of students. Dr. 

Parlato stated she will send out more information 

about it but essentially if you have 20 plus students, 
then you need the bi-lingual teacher. Mrs. McInerney 
added that one is mandated (bi-lingial), and one is not 

state mandated (ELL) but needs to be addressed for the 

students. 

Mrs. Herring asked about the increase of staff. Mr. 
Giovannone stated it is the ISS monitor, and 

contractual increases. If you back out the $32,281 it 
would show an increase of 3% budgeted for existing 

people. 

Mrs. Faulenbach asked about structured study halls. 

Ms. Scoralick stated 504 and MLL students can use 
structured study halls for identified needs. Mrs. 

Faulenbach asked where we are with the number of 
study halls. Ms. Scoralick stated she didn’t have an 

exact number, but it has drastically decreased. Mrs. 

McInerney stated the structured study halls are 
necessary for students who need the time for 
schoolwork. 

Mrs. Rella asked about the 20% increase in security. 

Mr. Giovannone replied that it has to do with the MoU 

for school security officers. Mrs. Faulenbach added it 
was discussed last night. 

Mrs. Herring stated structured study halls shouldn’t 

turn into a reteaching period. Ms. Scoralick stated it is 

being counted as one of the 5 instructional periods. 



New Milford Board of Education 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 
January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

Page 19 

Mrs. Rella asked about the $4,000 for printing student 
account. Mr. Giovannone stated it is mislabeled and is 

part of other services for Transportation. Mrs. Rella 
asked why it is new. Mr. Giovannone answered that it 

is for transportation for the new student leadership 
programs. 

Dr. Parlato thanked the assistant principals as well. 

High School: 

Mr. Manka thanked his team and instructional staff 

saying they are doing great every day. 

Mr. Manka stated they live by standards and are aware 

of the needs of students, staff, and stakeholders. It is 

important to compete and excel in the changing world. 
At NMHS there are currently 57 MLL students. 

They are proud of the staff and student supported 
Wingman program. There’s Pathways work leading to 

innovative programing and opportunities. They have 
introduced the Scientific Research Based Interventions 

and supporting students, it is a multi tiered system of 

support, responsive to the needs of students and staff. 
Mr. O'Brien asked what multi-tiered system support 

does. Mr. Manka stated they try to triage for root 

problems. With school avoidance, they have to find out 
why it is happening, then provide resources so that a 

student is comfortable with school and assist the child 
to be better equipped with tools. 

Mr. Manka went on to review the budget and how 
NMHS was involved with the Vision of the Graduate. 

The focus is on academic components in the classroom 

as well as the social and emotional growth mindset, 
and self management. 

Mr. Manka stated that with the Pathways program, 

they are looking for one staff addition for internships 
and career connected learning. He reiterated they 

secured a two-year grant with a two-year rewrite to 
explore new courses that would be early college 

experience. This would be advantageous growth since 
New Milford is one of the schools with the lowest 

amount of college experience or college credit. This is 

open to all students and there are over 50 teachers who 



New Milford Board of Education Page 20 

Budget Hearings & Adoption Minutes 
January 17, 18, 24 & 25, 2024 
Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center 

are interested in participating. Mr. Manka met with 
staff from Naugatuck Community College, and would 
like to return a pathway for CNA at NMHS utilizing 

resources from Naugatuck Valley. 

Mrs. McInerney asked if it is the intention that all 8th 

graders will go through a pathway, or is it still 
optional. Mr. Manka stated it is not mandatory but 

could be something in the future. Mrs. McInerney 
stated she thinks it is one of the most exciting things 
for the district. Mr. O'Brien asked Mr. Manka if he 

could explain how incoming freshmen are exposed to 
this. Mr. Manka stated a great resource is Mr. Turner 

working with the staff, and putting it in the right 
website channels. It is also about talking to incoming 

freshmen about the course selection process. Mr. 
Manka stated he wants to make sure students know 

what it is and isn't, as well as the community and 

parents. It’s about creating precise communication. Mr. 
O'Brien agreed it is very exciting. 

Mr. Barile asked if it is different from where a 
counselor helped students find their pathway and how 

it is different from a ConnectEDU. Mr. Manka stated it 

is similar to other structures and models. The 
Pathways program provides a similar outcome and a 

realization for students to find their passion or know 
what they don’t want. It can be costly for a student to 

spend two years at a college to then decide they are 
following a path they no longer want. 

Mrs. Rella asked if they’re planning to expand to 

trades. Mr. Manka stated yes, he is looking into allied 

health, manufacturing, education, and CNA. 

Mrs. Faulenbach asked how the schools are promoting 

the Pathways Coordinator, which is a position coming 
from ESSER to the General Fund, and what 

communication is happening for the students going 

from 8th to 9th grade. Mr. Manka stated, when the 
time is right, it becomes part of the document for 

course selection in PowerSchool. He is also planning 

pop-up seminars that will be live and virtual, and 

recognizes that there is an element of marketing that 

has to happen. Naviance is also a critical tool that can 

be used. 
























